
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY 

GRAND RAPIDS DISTRICT OFFICE 
 
 

STATE OFFICE BUILDING • 350 OTTAWA AVENUE, NW • UNIT 10 • GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49503-2341 
Michigan.gov/EGLE • 616-356-0500 

GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR 

LIESL EICHLER CLARK 
 DIRECTOR 

      August 10, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Frederic P. Worthen III 
Worthen Coated Fabrics 
3 East Spit Brook Road 
Nashua, NH 03060 SRN: P0634, Kent County 
 
Dear Mr. Worthen: 
 

VIOLATION NOTICE 
 
On June 18, 2021, the Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE), Air Quality 
Division (AQD), conducted an inspection of Worthen Coated Fabrics located at 1125 41st Street 
SE, Grand Rapids, Michigan.  The purpose of this inspection was to determine Worthen Coated 
Fabrics’ compliance with the requirements of the federal Clean Air Act; Part 55, Air Pollution 
Control, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended 
(Act 451); the Air Pollution Control Rules; and the conditions of Renewable Operating Permit 
(ROP) number MI-ROP-P0634-2017. 
 
During the inspection and subsequent July 12, 2021 Initial Notification submittal, staff observed 
the following: 
 

Process Description Rule/Permit  
Condition Violated 

Comments 

EU-FabricCoating and 
Coating Mix Preparation 
Equipment 

40 CFR 60.7(1) Failure to submit notification of 
the date construction of an 
affected facility is commenced 
within 30 days after such date. 

EU-FabricCoating and 
Coating Mix Preparation 
Equipment 

40 CFR 60.7(3) Failure to submit notification of 
the actual date of initial startup 
of an affected facility 
postmarked within 15 days 
after such date. 

Coating Mix Preparation 
Equipment 

40 CFR 60.742(c)(1) Failure to maintain a cover on 
each piece of affected coating 
mix preparation equipment and 
vent VOC emissions from the 
covered mix equipment to a 95 
percent efficient control device. 

Coating Mix Preparation 
Equipment 

40 CFR 60.743(c) Failure to install covers 
according to the specifications 

Coating Mix Preparation 
Equipment 

40 CFR 60.743(c) Failure to post procedures 
detailing the proper use of 
covers. 
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August 10, 2021 
   O

n July 12, 2021, the AQ
D

 received an initial notification indicating that W
orthen C

oated 
Fabrics is subject to the Standards of Perform

ance for Polym
eric C

oating of Supporting 
Substrates Facilities as prom

ulgated in 40 C
FR

 Part 60, Subpart VVV.  The initial start-up date 
for this facility w

as June 8, 2016.  40 C
FR

 Part 60, Subpart VVV requires the installation of a 
95 percent efficient control device on the C

oating M
ix Preparation Equipm

ent, w
hich has not 

occurred.  
 Please initiate actions necessary to correct the cited violations and subm

it a w
ritten response to 

this Violation N
otice by August 31, 2021 (w

hich coincides w
ith 21 calendar days from

 the date of 
this letter).  The w

ritten response should include:  the dates the violations occurred; an 
explanation of the causes and duration of the violations; w

hether the violations are ongoing; a 
sum

m
ary of the actions that have been taken and are proposed to be taken to correct the 

violations and the dates by w
hich these actions w

ill take place; and w
hat steps are being taken 

to prevent a reoccurrence. 
 Please subm

it the w
ritten response to EG

LE, AQ
D

, G
rand R

apids D
istrict, at 350 O

ttaw
a 

Avenue N
W

, U
nit 10, G

rand R
apids, M

ichigan 49503 and subm
it a copy to M

s. Jenine C
am

illeri, 
Enforcem

ent U
nit Supervisor at EG

LE, AQ
D

, P.O
. Box 30260, Lansing, M

ichigan 48909-7760. 
 If W

orthen C
oated Fabrics believes the above observations or statem

ents are inaccurate or do 
not constitute violations of the applicable legal requirem

ents cited, please provide appropriate 
factual inform

ation to explain your position. 
 Thank you for your attention to resolving the violations cited above and for the cooperation that 
w

as extended to m
e during m

y inspection of W
orthen C

oated Fabrics.  If you have any 
questions regarding the violations or the actions necessary to bring this facility into com

pliance, 
please contact m

e at the num
ber listed below

. 
  

 
 

 
 

 
Sincerely,  

    
 

 
 

 
 

April Lazzaro 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Senior Environm

ental Q
uality Analyst 

Air Q
uality D

ivision 
 

 
 

 
 

 
616-558-1092 
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